1987

In the Matter of the Registration Statement of Amenity Inc. Capital General Corporation v. Utah Securities Division and the Department of Buisness Regualtion : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION OF THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS
AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS BELOW

This is an appeal from the Order of the District Court for Salt Lake County, Judge Pat B. Brian, upholding the Final Order of the Utah Securities Advisory Board and the Executive Director of the Department of Business Regulation suspending all secondary trading exemptions of Amenity, Inc. stock. Jurisdiction is vested in the Utah Court of Appeals pursuant to §78-2a-3(2)(a) Utah Code 1977-1988, as an appeal from a District Court review of a final order of a state agency.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

The issues presented by this appeal are:

1. Whether the statute prohibiting sales of securities without registration with the Utah Securities Division (§61-1-7 Utah Code 1987-1988) also prohibits gifts. That is, is a "gift" a "sale" within the meaning of said statute?
2. Whether the gifts of stock in Amenity, Inc. made by appellant were made in good faith or bad faith.
3. Whether the respondents properly applied their statutory authority in issuing the Final Order.

DETERMINATIVE STATUTE: §61-1-7 Utah Code 1987-1988

"It is unlawful for any person to offer or sell any security in this state unless it is registered under this chapter or the security or transaction is exempted under Section 61-1-14."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case. This is an appeal from District Court review of administrative agency action.

Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below. On June 5, 1986, the Utah Securities Division (the "Division") brought an action before itself pursuant to §61-1-14(3) of the Utah Uniform Securities Act (the "Act") to revoke all trading exemptions of Amenity, Inc. under said §61-1-14 (R. 73,74). Said petition alleged in substance that appellant had made a distribution of Amenity, Inc. stock in violation of §61-1-7, quoted above, and that such was done for the purpose of evading the registration requirements of the Act (R. 73,74).

The matter was set for hearing on June 19, 1986, (R. 75) at which time it was agreed between the parties that the facts were not in dispute and that the matter would be submitted on legal briefs on the following stipulated facts (R. ___, see footnote 1, following page):

1. Amenity, Inc. ("the company") was incorporated on January 7, 1986, with capitalization of 100,000,000 shares of \$0.001 par value.

2. On January 8, 1986, 1,000,000 shares were issued to appellant Capital General Corporation ("CGC") for a consideration of \$2,000.00 cash. As of that date, CGC was the only shareholder of the company.

3. CGC is a financial consulting firm, incorporated in 1971, and has numerous contacts, customers, former customers, business associates, etc. in the financial world.

4. CGC gave 100 shares each out of its 1,000,000 shares of the company's stock to approximately 900 of such

contacts, customers, etc. Persons or entities who received the gifts were selected at random and included shareholders of such contacts, customers, etc. and persons who formerly had no direct or indirect contact with CGC. No registration statement for the gifted shares was filed.

5. Although a prime reason for making the gifts was the rewarding of past association and loyalty and the general exposure of CGC's financial consulting business to persons in the financial world, or, in other words, the creation and/or maintenance of goodwill, no consideration or payment of any kind for the stock was solicited or accepted. That is, it was strictly a free and bona fide gift, no strings attached. The recipients did not have to buy anything, become a customer of CGC, fill out a questionnaire or pay or provide any consideration at all, and they were free to reject the gifts if they desired.

At said hearing on June 19, 1986¹ it was stipulated that the issues in the case were solely issues of law and related to now the above quoted §61-1-7 and related provisions of the Act

¹The respondents recorded the two subsequent hearings referred to below, but they failed to record the first hearing on June 19, 1986, at which the stipulation was made and the stipulated facts were received in written form. Appellant discovered only two days before its brief was due that portions of the record below occurring after said nonrecorded hearing, but establishing said stipulation, have been omitted by the Clerk of the District Court, presumably inadvertently. Rather than seek a continuance to allow time to rectify the problem, it was decided to write this footnote of explanation inasmuch as appellant does not believe respondents will deny their stipulation in their brief. This is because (1) to do so would throw yet another error in the proceedings below inasmuch as it was respondents' responsibility to record the hearing, and appellant has relied on said stipulation in subsequent hearings, (2) respondents have not denied the stipulation in any of the several proceedings and filings since said hearing, and (3) it appears from respondents arguments below that they yet feel entitled to have the judgment below affirmed as a matter of law based on the stipulated facts, either alone or with additional facts subsequent to said hearing. Should appellants belief be in error, i.e. should respondents deny having entered into the stipulation on June 19, 1986, appellant will request the Clerk of the District Court to certify the missing portions of the record and will supplement this brief to provide the appropriate references to the record.

applied to the above facts. The parties submitted briefs and the matter was set down for further argument in September 1986, and in October 1986 the administrative law judge, Honorable J. Steven Ecklund, issued his findings and conclusions and recommended order (included in addendum) that the petition of respondents' be denied and dismissed "there being no proper basis to conclude that the registration requirements mandated by Section 61-1-7 are applicable to the disposition of the securities in question." (R. 31).

Respondent regulatory agencies were naturally disappointed in Judge Ecklund's recommended order dismissing their petition and therefore caused further review of said order and further factual hearing before the Utah Securities Advisory Board on January 20, 1987, (R. 25) at which time they were successful in persuading their advisory board to overrule Judge Ecklund and find and conclude and rule that the gifts of stock by appellant violated §61-1-7. Based thereon, respondents issued the Final Order of suspension (R. 16-20).

Thereafter, appellant filed a petition with the District Court for Salt Lake County seeking a review of said Final Order (R. 2-8). The District Court having upheld said Final Order, appellant has appealed to the Court of Appeals.

Facts. As of the date of respondent's petition, June 5, 1986, and the hearing thereon, June 19, 1986, the above stipulated facts constituted all of the facts of the case. Subsequent

to said date, appellant conducted further activity with respect to Amenity, Inc., including the rendering of assistance for a fee (R. 118, page 57) in causing an infusion of assets into (R. 118, page 19), and the acquisition of control of, the corporation by third parties. Appellant does not believe facts developed subsequent to the said June 1986 petition and hearing are inconsistent with or change the legal effect of the above stipulated facts (see footnote 2 on page 18) and therefore will not itemize them further at this time. Undoubtedly respondents will emphasize in their brief those facts they feel are most important, but essentially the facts are not in dispute. What is in dispute is the conclusions of respondents in the Final Order with respect to the facts.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court summarily and without listing any findings or reasons for its ruling, upheld the Final Order of the respondents' suspending all secondary trading exemptions (R. 107, 108). Appellant believes that the District Court's said order should be reversed because it is contrary to the statutes and unsupported by the evidence adduced in the administrative hearings. This can be summarized in three main areas, any one of which is sufficient to require reversal of the order, as follows:

1. "Gift" v. "Sale." The plain meaning of the statute (§61-1-7 Utah Code 1987-1988) clearly limits its application only to sales. Appellant acknowledges that it did not register the shares of stock that it gave away, but the wording of the statute, both by the plain meaning and import of the terms used (it uses "sale" and "sell," not "give" or "gift"), and the purposes of the securities laws (to protect people who pay money or other consideration for securities) is clearly against the interpretation placed on it by the respondents.

It is appellant's position that because the Act, and in particular the section quoted above, is limited by its terms to situations involving sales, the Division and the Act have no power or application whatsoever relating to the giving of the gifts by appellant. Therefore respondents' order suspending trading of the gifted shares based upon the alleged wrongful act in the giving of the shares must be set aside and reversed as a matter of law.

Appellant acknowledges that once the shares have been gifted that the Act would apply to subsequent transfers of such shares, i.e., that any subsequent trades would have to comply with the provisions of the Act and the respondents' rules with respect to secondary trading. However, respondents' petition and order is not brought or based on violation of the secondary trading rules, but is founded solely on respondents' allegations that the gifts

were in violation of the statutory prohibition against sales of unregistered stock. Since there were no sales, the order should be reversed.

2. Bad Faith vs. Good Faith Gifts. Even if the term "sale" does include the term "gift," §61-1-13(15)(d)(i) specifically exempts a good faith gift. It would seem obvious that any gift, a good faith gift or a bad faith gift, is still a gift, i.e., not a sale and therefore not covered by the Act. Whether or not there is even such a thing as a bad faith gift is open to question (it is not mentioned or defined in the Act and it is otherwise unfamiliar terminology). But if it is assumed for a minute as argued by respondents that a bad faith gift is a sale, the Order entered below should nevertheless be overruled because, in fact, the gifts made by appellant were good faith gifts. This is shown in that a) the original stipulated facts when it was agreed to submit the matter solely on a question of law state that the gifts were "bona fide gifts," b) the administrative law judge's findings and conclusion state that the gifts were made in good faith (R. 31), and c) the facts adduced at the final hearing subsequent to the administrative law judge's findings and conclusions, held January 20, 1987, again show clearly that Capital General Corporation took every reasonable step to comply with the law and acted in good faith in every way (R. 118).

3. Respondents Exceeded Their Authority. Respondents have exceeded their statutory authority in any event. Respondents' authority is contained in §61-1-14(3). This section grants respondents the authority to revoke secondary trading exemptions granted by statute only if the the person seeking the exemption has failed to come within the statutorily defined criteria for the exemption. It does not grant authority to revoke exemptions which have not been claimed, nor does it allow revocation based on grounds outside of said §14. Respondents' petition and order violate both of these statutory limitations on their authority.

ARGUMENT

POINT I. RESPONDENTS' FINAL ORDER AND THE ORDER OF THE DISTRICT COURT SHOULD BE SET ASIDE ON THE GROUND THAT AS A MATTER OF LAW §7 OF THE UTAH UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT APPLIES ONLY TO SALES OF SECURITIES AND NOT TO GIFTS OF SECURITIES.

Section 7 is quoted above on page 2. Simply stated, it is appellant's position that since the legislature limited the application of the statute to situations involving the selling of securities, the action of respondent regulatory agencies in applying it to the giving of securities is gross error.

The matter is so simple, it would seem it would require no argument. Everyone surely has been aware ever since grammar

school that "sale" and "gift" do not mean the same thing, but connote totally different concepts. These words are practically as common in usage and understanding as "yes" and "no." Even so, the legislature defined "sell" or "sale" in the Act (§61-1-13 (15)(a)) as a disposition "for value," which, as one would predict for such a commonly used and understood word, is identical to the dictionary definition and the common accepted usage. Although "gift" is not defined in the statute it is no less well understood.

That words used in statutes are to be construed according to their plain meaning is likewise such a simple and universally established principle as to require no argument. Nevertheless, a few citations follow:

Section 68-3-11 Utah Code 1987-1988:

Words and phrases are to be construed according to the context and approved usage of the language; but technical words and phrases, and such others as have acquired a peculiar and appropriate meaning in law, or are defined by statute, are to be construed according to such peculiar and appropriate meaning or definition.

"Sell" is not a peculiar or technical word, and the definition in the statute is totally consistent with the plain meaning and approved usage in the language.

Gord v. Salt Lake City, 434 P.2d 449 (Utah 1967) at 451:

The statute should not be stricken down nor applied other than in accordance with its literal wording unless it is so unclear or confused as to be wholly beyond reason, or inoperable, or it contravenes some basic constitutional right. If it meets these tests it

is not the court's prerogative to consider its wisdom, or its effectiveness, nor even the reasonableness or orderliness of the procedure set forth, but it has a duty to let it operate as the legislature has provided.

There is nothing about the word "sell" which is unclear, confused, inoperable, beyond reason, etc. On the contrary, it is totally clear and fits totally within the scheme and purpose of securities regulation, i.e., to protect purchasers of stock.

Patrolmen's Benevolent Association v. City of New York, 359 N.E.2d 1338 (N.Y. Ct. App. 1976) at 1341:

Hence, where as here the statute describes the particular situations in which it is to apply, "an irrefutable inference must be drawn that what is omitted or not included was intended to be omitted or excluded." (McKinney's Constitutional Laws of N.Y., Book 1, Statutes, §240).

Had the Utah Legislature intended the prohibition respecting sales of securities in §7 to also apply to gifts of securities, it would have been an easy thing for the legislature to have included gifts as well as sales in the wording of the statute. However, having described "the particular situation in which it is to apply," i.e. sales, an irrefutable inference must be drawn that it was intended to omit gifts.

Finger Lakes Racing Association v. New York State Racing, 382 N.E.2d 1131 (N.Y. Ct. App. 1978) at 1135:

Courts are constitutionally bound to give effect to the expressed will of the Legislature and the plain and obvious meaning of the statute is always preferred to any curious, narrow or hidden sense that nothing but a strained interpretation of legislative intent would discern (Citations).

It is an elementary principle of statutory construction that courts may only look behind the words of a statute when the law itself is doubtful or ambiguous (Citations). If, as here, the terms of a statute are plain and within the scope of legislative power, it declares itself and there is nothing left for interpretation. To permit a court to say that the law must mean something different than the common import of its language would make the judicial superior to the legislative branch of government and practically invest it with lawmaking power.

Appellant would add to the above and say that to permit the respondents to say that §7 of the Act means something different than the common import of its language would make the respondent regulatory agencies superior to the legislature; and that surely it is obvious that what respondents have done is "nothing but a strained interpretation of the legislative intent..." in issuing their Final Order in this matter.

There are hundreds of precedents all over the country which have held similar to the above authorities, and it serves no purpose to burden this brief with dozens more appellate court citations to the same obvious effect. Inasmuch as the District Court failed to list any findings, conclusions or reasons for its ruling upholding the respondents' Final Order, appellant does not know why the District Court did not adopt these well known doctrines of statutory construction. However, the record at the agency level indicates that the rationale for the Final Order is to the effect that appellant's gifts to approximately 900 donees, which admittedly were gifts from the standpoint of the donee (i.e. they were not asked to, nor did they, give any value for

the stock they received), were not gifts from the standpoint of appellant because appellant obtained some value from having made the gifts, e.g., valuable goodwill and cash for services in connection with ongoing activities of the company.

In a nutshell, it appears the claim of respondents is that appellant's "gifts" are in fact "sales" because of the profit, potential or actual, which has or may become available to appellant from having made the gifts. No doubt this line of reasoning is deemed advisable because of the obvious difficulty in getting around appellant's plain meaning arguments and irrefutable authorities cited above. However, appellant respectfully submits that it just won't work. Such line of reasoning is still totally inconsistent with the well established plain meaning doctrine and the above cited authorities and is merely a play on words in an attempt to get around the said authorities without having to challenge their obvious correctness. Consider the following simple illustration:

Labeling a chicken a duck does not make it so, even though both are birds and one can point out many similarities between them, such as size, feathers, walk, etc. In the same way, both gifts and sales are transfers of property and there are many similarities between them, as for example, in both cases the transferor receives something from having made the transfer. In the case of a gift the transferor may receive goodwill, perhaps

greater loyalty from the giftee, an opportunity for profitable business in the future, or just a good feeling, etc. There is no such thing as a gift that does not provide something for the giver. The obvious reason that a sale is different is that a sale connotes a bargain, i.e., a contractually agreed upon consideration. This is the common and accepted usage and is identical to the definition in the Act. Section 61-1-13(15)(a) provides:

"Sale or "sell" includes every contract for sale of, contract to sell, or disposition of, a security or interest in a security for value. (Emphasis added).

Notwithstanding respondents' apparent willingness to call a chicken a duck, appellant respectfully submits that no reasonable mind can seriously contend that under the plain meaning and common usage of the words gift and sale, the gifts of Amenity stock were sales to purchasers rather than gifts to donees. Pointing out, as respondents have done, that as of the date of the gifts and respondents' petition alleging them to be unlawful there was hope for ongoing profit from other sources and activities and that subsequently a portion of such hope became a reality, does not change the nature of the gift transactions. There is still no bargain, no contract, no purchase, no disposition for value, and the recipients of the stock are still donees of gifts, and to hold otherwise would be a violation of the above well established and documented plain meaning doctrines just as clearly as if it were held that "sell" means "give."

Notwithstanding the obviously correct principles and authorities cited above, suprisingly enough there have been other enterprising litigants who have contended for the strained interpretation respondents would seek to establish. But without exception, every time anyone has tried it they have been overruled and their twisted interpretation of the statute disallowed. For example, in two Federal cases, Truncale v. Blumberg, 80 F.Supp. 387 (S.D.N.Y. 1948) and Shaw v. Dreyfus, 172 F.2d 140 (2nd Cir. 1949), cert. den., 37 U.S. 907, it was sought to include gifts in the definition of sales under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Similar arguments were used as in the present case, i.e., that the persons making the gifts had received some benefit from having done so, such as goodwill, loyalty of their executives, etc. These arguments were rejected by the Southern District of New York and the Second Circuit, and they refused to consider the gifts made in those cases as sales within the meaning of §16(b) of said 1934 Act for the same reasons stated above by appellant, that is, those courts emphasized the natural and plain meaning of the words gift and sale and said that "to sell or otherwise dispose of" as used in the statute could not be inferred to include a gift, Truncale v. Blumberg, supra at 390.

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