1987

In the Matter of the Registration Statement of Amenity Inc. Capital General Corporation v. Utah Securities Division and the Department of Business Regualtion : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The standard of review is whether the Department Order is arbitrary and capricious.

This Court reviews the administrative decision rather than the district court's order. Appellant has the burden to show that the administrative Order was arbitrary, capricious, irrational and unreasonable in order for this Court to overturn the decision. Mere difference of opinion concerning the correctness or propriety of the decision is not sufficient to overturn it. The Order by the Department suspending all trading exemptions was arrived at in a rational, analytically satisfactory manner as evidenced by statutory and common law, and the findings of the Department were based upon substantial, competent evidence.

The law applicable in this case is "special law," as defined by case law, and the SAB is required to apply its technical expertise in interpreting such law in order to render its decision. The law requires reviewing courts to apply great deference to such technical expertise.

Appellant has failed to meet its burden of proof to show error by the administrative agency, and therefore, this Court must uphold the Department's decision because it was rational.

2. The purpose of the Act is to protect the public, one means of such protection is through the registration requirements.

The major thrust of the Uniform Securities Act is to protect the public in its dealings in the securities market. One of the ways such protection is furthered is through the Act's requirement that all securities offered or sold in this State must be registered with the Division. The registration requirements provide, among other things, information to the public concerning the security and those issuing it.

3. The distribution of Amenity's stock was unlawful because it was not registered with the Division.

The Act provides that it is unlawful to offer or sell any security in this state unless it is registered with the Division, or the security or transaction is exempt. The Act also defines "offer," "sell" and "sale" to include every disposition of a security for value.

Appellant claims that Amenity's disposition of its stock is excepted from the Act's registration requirements because the securities were bona fide gifts to the recipients. That is, the distribution of the stock by "gift" is not a sale, and therefore, no registration of the securities in such a distribution is required.

Clearly, a "gift" of a security constitutes a disposition of the security, and thus it is an "offer" or "sale" if it is a disposition for value. Case law and two examples provided in the Act indicate that a disposition by gift can be for value, and in this case, the creation of a public corporation by gifting securities to 900 individuals is a disposition for

value. Obviously, the gifting of securities for value is required to be registered with the Division unless otherwise exempted.

The Act provides that a "good faith gift" is an exception to the definition of an "offer" or "sale," and thus, appellant claims, it is an exception to the registration requirements. Regardless of the accuracy of that claim, appellant bears the burden of proving to the Department that what Amenity had done constituted a good faith gift in order for Amenity to assert that the disposition did not require registration. A "good faith gift" is not any and all types of gifts--it is a particular type of gift, and the Department has the authority to determine what it is pursuant to its legislative grant of authority and in furtherance of the purposes of the Act.

Appellant failed to convince the Department that its transaction was a good faith gift of securities. It must now show that the Department was unreasonable and arbitrary in its denial of the claim to the exception. The case law and analyses appellant provides fails to show error by the Department in its determination that the distribution of Amenity stock was not a good faith gift.

The Department found that Amenity disposed of its securities in an effort to circumvent the registration requirements of the Act. The Department then concluded that a good faith gift is a bona fide gift given in good faith. i.e., without intent to circumvent the purposes of the Securities Act and its registration requirements. Such a determination is

reasonable, is supported by case law, and is an application of special law to which reviewing courts are to give great deference.

3. The SAB and the Executive Director have authority to suspend all trading exemptions.

The Legislature determined that the proper manner to protect the public in its dealings with the securities market is by requiring that all securities disposed of for value must be registered with the Division unless otherwise exempted. When securities are distributed to the public without such registration, the Division has a duty to act quickly and effectively to prevent further trading of the securities. One resource provided by the Legislature to protect the public from the unlawful trading of illegally distributed securities is by suspending any exemptions that might be improperly claimed by one attempting to trade such securities.

Appellant's claim that the Division must wait until an exemption is claimed by an individual before it can act to deny or revoke such a claim is not founded on any such requirement in the statute, and it ignores the practical realities the Division faces in its regulation of the securities market. An after-the-fact attempt by the Division to declare that the person was in error when he thought he was trading his securities under a proper exemption does too little too late in protecting the public.

Pursuant to the legislative mandate to protect the public by the exercise of its authority, the Division acted to protect subsequent purchasers of Amenity's stock by suspending

all trading exemptions on the stock in Utah. For the Division not to so act would be a derogation of its duty to the public. Such an act by the Division is clearly within its authority, and to prevent the Division from so acting would result in substantial harm to subsequent purchasers who act in reliance on the expectation that the Division is properly regulating the securities market in Utah. The public cannot be as adequately and promptly protected in any other way than by the Division's action under § 61-1-14(3).

ARGUMENTS

POINT I. APPELLANT MUST SHOW THAT THE DEPARTMENT'S FINDINGS OF FACT ARE UNSUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ARE UNREASONABLE

The scope of review of the Department's decision by this Court is limited to determining whether the administrative decision is reasonable and rational and is not arbitrary.² This Court has had occasion to review a decision by the Executive Director and the SAB in the case of Technomedical Labs, Inc. v. Utah Securities Div., 744 P.2d 320 (Utah App. 1987). In that case, this Court set forth the following standard of review applicable to this type of administrative decision:

In Utah Dep't of Admin. Serv. v. Public Serv. Comm'n, 658 P.2d 601 (Utah 1983), the Utah Supreme Court outlined the three standards of review to be applied to decisions of administrative agencies generally. The standard

² While this appeal is from a decision by the district court, this Court reviews the administrative decision as if the appeal had come directly from the agency. Technomedical Labs, Inc. v. Utah Securities Division, 744 P.2d 320, 321 (Utah App. 1987), and Bennion v. Utah State Board of Oil, Gas & Mining, 675 P.2d 1135 (Utah 1983).

which applies in the instant case is that of reasonableness or rationality. Included under this standard are agency questions on "mixed questions of law and fact" and agency interpretations of "special law." "Special law" is defined as "the operative provisions of the statutory law [the agency] is empowered to administer, especially those generalized terms that bespeak a legislative intent to delegate their interpretation to the responsible agency." Id. at 610. Deference is afforded to the expertise and experience of the agency in its interpretation of key provisions of a statute it is empowered to administer. Under this standard, the agency's decision will be set aside "only if it is outside 'the tolerable limits of reason,' or 'so unreasonable that it must be deemed capricious and arbitrary.'" Id. at 612. (quoting Silver Beehive Telephone Co. v. Public Serv. Comm'n, 30 Utah 2d 44, 46, 512 P.2d 1327, 1328, (1973); Williams v. Public Serv. Comm'n, 29 Utah 2d 9, 11, 504 P.2d 34, 36 (1972)).

There is no question that the law involved in this case is "special law," and that "deference is afforded to the expertise and experience of the agency in its interpretation" of the law; the Legislature specifically indicated such in a note to the 1983 Supplement of the Utah Securities Act. Immediately preceding § 61-1-1 of the Utah Securities Act, U.C.A. (1983 Supp.), the legislature presented the purpose of the Utah Securities Division as follows:

Title of Act.

An act relating to securities; providing for a securities division to administer and enforce state securities laws; authorizing the division to set registration and examination fees; modifying bond requirements for registered broker dealers and investment advisors; providing summary powers to deny registration applications; modifying coordinated filing requirements; limiting extension period on summary orders; providing and modifying definition; providing and modifying exemptions from registration; providing for a securities advisory board; increasing interest charges for violations brought by private litigants; providing additional penalties

for securities violations; increasing the ceiling on criminal fines for violation of securities law; and authorizing the division to classify specific acts as unlawful.

See also, Laws of Utah, Chapter 284 at 1108. (Emphasis added.) The statutes at issue in this case are clearly within the categories provided above, and thus are "special law."

Regarding the findings of fact by the Department, the Utah Supreme Court held in Administrative Services that findings on questions of basic fact may be overturned by the reviewing court "only where they are 'so without foundation in fact' that they 'must be deemed capricious and arbitrary.'" 658 P.2d at 608 (emphasis in original). And the findings must be upheld "if 'there is evidence of any substance whatever' which can reasonably be regarded as supporting the determination made." Id. (emphasis in original).

Thus, under the above standard of review, this Court must uphold the Department's decision unless appellant can demonstrate that such decision was not based on any evidence whatsoever, was irrational and unreasonable, and was not done in pursuit of the Division's legislative purpose of protecting the public through the administration and enforcement of the State's securities laws.

**POINT II. THE DISTRIBUTION OF AMENITY STOCK VIOLATES
THE PURPOSES OF THE UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT BECAUSE
IT WAS DISPOSED OF WITHOUT REGISTRATION**

A. Introduction

Since the review of the administrative decision below will be governed by the "reasonableness or rationality" standard as indicated above, in order to aid this Court in its application

of the test for reasonableness, a brief discussion of the intent and purposes of the Utah Uniform Securities Act ("the Act") is in order.

The Utah Supreme Court in Payable Accounting Corp., v. McKinley, 667 P.2d 15, (Utah 1983) noted that "[s]ecurities laws are remedial in nature and should be broadly and liberally construed to give effect to the legislative purpose." In Technomedical Labs, Inc., this Court stated that "[t]he purposes of securities acts in general are to prevent fraud and to encourage disclosure of information through registration, thereby protecting investors from the sale of fraudulent and worthless speculative securities." 744 P.2d at 322. And, in Utah Code Ann. § 61-1-27, the Legislature stated that "[t]his chapter may be so construed as to effectuate its general purpose to make uniform the law of those states which enact it and to co-ordinate the interpretation and administration of this chapter with the related federal regulation."

The Minnesota Supreme Court in the case of State v. Horface, 288 N.W. 13, 16 (Minn. 1939) stated that the clear purpose of the Uniform Blue Sky Laws "is to curb the activities of those who by ingenious subterfuge or by fraudulent means seem bent on disposing to the ignorant and gullible, fraudulent or speculative securities."

In the case of SEC v. Harwyn Industries Corp., 326 F.Supp 943, 953 (S.D.N.Y. 1971) the court noted;

[I]t is readily apparent that the Harwyn spin-offs violated the spirit and purpose of the registration requirements of § 5 of the 1933 Act, which is to protect investors by promoting

full disclosure of information thought necessary to informed investment decisions.
. . . Furthermore, the registration provisions are designed not only to protect immediate recipients of distributed securities but also subsequent purchasers from them.
(Citations omitted.)

From the forgoing cases it becomes apparent that the purpose of the registration provisions of the Act is to protect the public through full disclosure, and that the Act should be broadly and liberally construed in order to curb the abuse of the registration provisions of the Act through subterfuge or fraud.

1. Registration Requirements of the Act

The Act provides protection to the public by requiring the registration of securities to be offered or sold in the State, or an exemption to such registration must be established. Such registration can be carried out through various types of disclosure requirements: Sections 61-1-8, 9, and 10 of the Act provide three separate vehicles for the registration of an initial public offering (IPO); Section 61-1-14 is the section dealing with exemptions from registration.

a. Disclosure Required Under An IPO

Under the Act, a private corporation that wishes to become public can examine and select one of the requirements of the three initial registration sections which best coincides with the goals and objectives of the company. Typically, all three methods require the disclosure of the following:

the principles behind the company, their past business history, and a disclosure of any significant criminal or civil action which has been taken against them;

the capital structure of the company with recent financial data and disclosure of ownership both before and after the public distribution of the security;

a discussion of the company's business history, business purpose, and prospects for the future;

In addition, any individual obtaining a share of the security in the public distribution is required to be furnished a prospectus and sign a subscription agreement. The information provided the investor in the prospectus must contain all relevant information that a reasonable investor would require in order to make an informed investment decision. Both the making of material misrepresentations and the failure to make adequate disclosure are actionable under the fraud provisions of the Act. (See § 61-1-1)

After a given registration has been approved by the Division and become effective, recipients of the initial offering can trade the security for up to a year's time. Once the registration time period has run, the recipients of the security cannot trade the security unless they obtain a trading exemption under § 61-1-14. U.C.A. § 61-1-11(8).

b. Exemptions From Registration Requirements

Section 61-1-14 provides approximately 28 different situations in which the registration requirements of 61-1-7 are inapplicable, and subsection 2 of 61-1-14 pertains to some 17 transactional exemptions which are the type of exemptions applicable to this case. Note that there are only three subsections within 14(2) that call for additional information to

claim an exemption from registration in trading a security, and only two of those could be applied in this case: subsection 14(2)(m) provides for disclosure for trading of the security when it is a non-issuer transaction effected by or through a broker dealer; subsection 14(2)(b) exemption provides for disclosure through recognized securities manuals. But, 14(2)(b) and (m) exemptions do not cover all situations in which securities trading may take place, and the other exemptions under 14(2) (except 2(p)) do not require any disclosure of information.

The disclosure required in 14(2)(b) and (m) is information which supplements and updates the disclosure required for the initial registration, and it typically requires only that the names and addresses of the principals of the company, the name of the registered agent, a brief business history, and a recent unaudited financial of the company be provided.

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